
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD 

15 February 2022. 
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors G Perham, D Bowater, 
A Dodwell, F Kharawala, T Morris, R Berry, M Freeman, R Goodchild, P Snelling and 
P Carberry) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 24 February 2022 commencing at 10.30 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Please do not attend this meeting if 

 You have tested positive for Covid-19 or have symptoms of Covid-19 

 You have ben advised to self-isolate by NHS Test and Track the NSH app or any 
other reason. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 24 February 2022 
 

 

 

the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(e)(f)(g) and 3(g). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-
Committee meeting held on 2 December 2021. (attached).  

(b) To receive any updates from the minutes. 
 

5.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 5 - 14) 

 

 To receive a report and consider the recommendations therein (attached) 
 

6.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 15 - 18) 

 

 To receive a report detailing end of financial year 2020/21 income and 
expenditure and consider the recommendations therein (attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 

Members of the public are very welcome to attend the meeting but are asked to 
note that attendance numbers must be limited to mitigate for Covid-19 risks. 
Please contact us to advise if you wish to attend before 4pm on the day of the 
meeting. Written representations may also be submitted before 4pm on the day of 
the meeting.  
 



Page 29 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF MARKET SUB COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2021 AT 10.30 AM 
 

Present:   Councillors G Perham (Chair) 
D Bowater 
A Dodwell 
F Kharawala 
T Morris 
M Freeman (Vice-Chair) 
R Goodchild 
P Carberry 

 
Also in attendance: V Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic 

Services 
A Harrison, Markets Manager 
M Jahn, Committee Officer 

  
 
Members of the public: 0 
Members of the press 0 

 
64/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Berry and Snelling 

and from Dave Gibbins (NMTF Trader Liaison Officer). 
 

65/MK DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations were made and no dispensations were requested. 
 
 

66/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15 
minutes) 
 

 There were no questions from the public. 
 

67/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 5 August 2021 for consideration.  
 
A question was raised on minute reference 61/MK asking if any feedback on 
the change of opening hours had been received but no negative adverse 
comments had been received. 
 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub Committee Meeting Thursday, 2 December 2021 
 

 

Page 30 

held on 5 August 2021 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly. 
 

68/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE 
 

 The Sub-Committee received a general market update report and appendix 
for consideration.  These included updates on delivery of activity and general 
updates. 
 
All planned themed markets had been delivered with the exception of the 
France at Home Market which was cancelled due to Covid travel restrictions 
and it was hoped to hold it in Spring 2022.   The next specialist market was 
the Vegan market planned for Sunday 12 December. 
 
Two new permanent traders had joined the market on both Tuesdays and 
Saturdays and one casual trader left to open a shop in the High Street.  
 
Since restrictions were lifted on 10 August 2021 both the Handmade and 
Craft, and Farmers markets had moved back to their original positions 
alongside Market House although there had been a fall in numbers initially 
with the Handmade and Craft traders. However there had been fresh 
enquiries over recent weeks with crafters beginning to attend. 
 
Some new younger traders had  joined the market  and promoted their 
products on social media and were pleased with the business they received. 
 
Members agreed the market had a ‘good feel’ and were happy with the layout 
at the present time.  Also it was hoped the benefit of free parking on a 
Saturday during December would add to the footfall and trade in the run up to 
Christmas. 
 
It was noted that Leighton-Linslade Market had been included on the NABMA 
Awards list as one of the top thirty in the country.  This was a great honour 
and it would be promoted via our social media requesting people to vote for 
the market.  It was agreed that details of how and where to vote would be 
resent to Councillors who could then share to enable a wider audience to 
submit their vote. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the reports. 
 

69/MK BUDGET REPORT 
 

 The sub-committee received a budget report. It was noted that at this halfway 
point in the year, the market income for 1st and 2nd quarters combined had 
exceeded the annual income target for 2021/22.   
 
RESOLVED to note the report 
 

70/MK FARMERS MARKET 
 

Page 2



Market Sub Committee Meeting Thursday, 2 December 2021 
 

 

Page 31 

 The sub-committee received a report to present ideas for enhancement of  
Farmers Market and how to move forward with a change of name and review 
of policies and considered the recommendations therein.  
 
The first stage of the review looked at a new name, more PR and 
recruitment.    Changes to the market should also look at the benefits to the 
community through communication reasonable pricing and how markets and 
local produce helped combat climate change.    
 
RESOLVED  
 
(a) To change the name of the farmers market to ‘Farmers and 

Producers Market’ to help explain the market’s product offer better 
to traders and consumers alike. 

 
(b) TO RECOMMEND the amended Farmers and Producers Market 

Policy to Policy and Finance Committee for endorsement as set 
out. 

 
71/MK 12 MONTH ANNUAL REVIEW 

 
 The sub-committee received and considered a detailed 12-month review 

report showing the unique circumstances the market had faced with the 
COVID-19 restrictions in place and after the lifting of restrictions.  This was 
the fourth review since the market relaunched in late September 2017. 
 
No adverse comments had been received from the traders regarding the 
layout of the market under the ETRO which would be subject to review in 
Spring 2022.  Until then the market continued to operate traffic free with the 
stalls facing into the road area.  The footfall showed an increase in numbers 
of customers on market days compared to non-market days.    
 
Members agreed that more promotion of the market would be beneficial as 
there were a large number of younger families moving into the area who 
would not know what was available at the market.  Targeted recruitment and 
publicity through social media would bring in younger traders and inform 
families of what was happening in their High Street.  It was agreed that the 
market was generally holding its own but continued promotion would be 
needed to increase income and footfall.  
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 12.03 pm.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2021.  

Page 3



Market Sub Committee Meeting Thursday, 2 December 2021 
 

 

Page 32 

 
 
 
 
Chair                                         24 February 2022   

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 

Market Sub Committee      
 

Date: 24 February 2022    

 

Title: Market General Update   

 
Purpose of the Report: To provide an update on market activity. 
 

Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 
 

 

Corporate Objective/s No 23. To continue to manage, promote and develop 
the street market. 

Implications:  

Financial Within existing budget 

Human Resources  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Market annual plan, activity plan and general 
updates   

Procedural/Legal  

Risk/Health and Safety  

Environmental Aims  

 

1 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded, the proposal is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 
2 DELIVERY OF THEMED, VISITING, SPECIALITY AND OTHER MARKETS 
 
2.1 The table below provides an update on Themed, Visiting, Speciality and Other 
Markets planned to date (Qu3) for 2021/22. 
 

Date Themed Markets 2021/2022 Delivery Status 

16 – 30 May Love Your Local Market Fortnight (Virtual 
delivery to link with Twin Towns) 

Postponed to October 
2021) DELIVERED 

3 July  Independents Day 
(In collaboration with LB First) 

DELIVERED 

13 July Community Action Day 
(Led by CBC) 

DELIVERED 

3 August National Children’s Playday DELIVERED 

26 October Halloween activity DELIVERED 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
  

 
 
2.2 The table below presents the pitch usage figures for Qu.3, 2021/2022 
 

 
*  One day’s trading lost - adverse weather policy invoked. 
** Three day’s trading lost – 2 bank holidays and 1 adverse weather policy invoked. 
 
 
2.3 Market trader recruitment updates - the table below presents the traders joined & 
left figures for Qu.3, 2021/22. 
 

Trader type Qu. 1 
Joined 

Qu.1 
Left 

Qu.2 
Joined 

Qu.2 
Left 

Qu.3 
Joined 

Qu.3 
Left 

Qu4 
Joined 

Qu 4 
Left 

Permanent 28 0 72 0 2 23   

Casual 21 11 11 0 13    

Farmers 6 0 1 0 1 1   

Craft 8 - 4 - 7 -   

Charities, 
Comm Groups 

6 - 0 - 1 -   

Start Up 0 - 1 - 1 -   

 
1  Casual Trader left to open shop in High Street 
2  Including two traders who joined both market days - Tuesday and Saturday. 

4 December Small Business Saturday DELIVERED 

Date Visiting Markets 2021/2022 Delivery Status 

30 April, 28 May,   
27 June, 25 July,   
29 August, 19 
September, 

Street Food Heroes - Sundays April, May, June dates 
postponed due to Covid 
restrictions. July, Aug, 
Sept, DELIVERED 

12 September,  Vegan Market - Sunday DELIVERED 

TBC  France at Home Market Cancelled due to Covid 
travel restrictions. Now 
Spring 2022 TBC 

12 December Vegan Market - Sunday DELIVERED 

Date Speciality & Other Delivery Status 

Held 3rd Thurs of 
every month 

Thursday eXtra Market   No longer held as all 
traders have returned 

26 - 28 Nov Christmas Festival Weekend DELIVERED 

5 December  Christmas Charity Market - Sunday DELIVERED 

Qu. 1 Pitches 
Used 

Qu. 2 Pitches 
Used 

Qu.3 Pitches 
Used 

Qu 4 Pitches 
Used 

Apr-21 298 Jul-21 414 Oct-21 447   

May-21 404 Aug-21 406 Nov-21* 418   

Jun-21 399 Sept-21 375 Dec-21** 316   

Page 6



 
  
3  Sadly, 1 trader passed away after illness and1 trader ceased trading after vehicle 
was stolen. 
 
Note:  
a) Traders’ figures start at Q1 and provide the annual baseline for Casual, Farmers 
and Producers, Handmade and Craft, Charities/Community, Start Up. Any additional 
traders that differ from Q1 are then added each quarter. 
b) Handmade and Craft market runs March to December. 

 

3 MARKET ANNUAL WORKPLAN 

 
3.1 The 2021/22 Annual Market Plan can be viewed in Appendix A (attached). It is 
split into 3 sections to denote new actions, those carried over from the previous year 
and core annual activity that will always appear on the plan. Progress on work tasks 
has been undertaken with one action remaining to be transferred into the next 
financial year. 
 
3.2 The Annual Market Workplan for 2022/23 is at Appendix B (attached) and 
remains a working document.   
   
 

4 GENERAL UPDATES 
 
4.1 The independent visiting Vegan Market was held in mid-December having 

originally been booked for June. The Covid restrictions in June meant that the event 

had to be either cancelled or re-arranged. Unfortunately, the weather in December 

was inclement which in turn affected customer attendance. The Vegan market 

manager reflected that the attendance in other venues was poor even when the 

weather was good. It has been agreed to arrange a visit earlier in 2022 in recognition 

of the seasonality of the vegan market’s success.  The date is reflected in the para 

6.2. 

4.2 Following the well-received Charity Christmas Market delivered by the event 
service in 2020, the market team undertook the lead role for this year’s delivery. 
Despite poor weather, charity turnout was good, and their feedback was positive 
about the opportunity to raise funds. The consensus was to arrange the 2022  event 
a few weeks earlier to allow more volunteers to be available and to not clash with 
other events around the start of December. The 2022 date is Sunday 20 November, 
as reflected in para. 6.2. 
 
4.3 Officers continue to research and contact other potential visiting markets. A 
Continental Market was contacted yet we are unable to address their requirement of 
a minimum length of 4 days attendance.  
 
 
 

Page 7



 
  
5 DIGITAL PLATFORMS 
 
5.1 Social media platforms continue to be used to inform and engage with traders 
and customers. This year’s Love Your Local Market campaign had a strong 
international theme linking up with our two twin towns. The aim was to highlight 
commonalities between our towns through the theme of markets.   
 
5.2 Officers experimented with ‘boosting’ a Facebook post as suggested at Market 
Sub Committee on 2 December. One of the posts about voting for Market of the Year 
was boosted for 7 days (2nd – 9th Dec) at a cost of £13.91.  This led to an 
engagement reach of 524 individuals seeing the post and 2 clicks on the 
post.  Officers will try this method with targeted future posts in order to ascertain 
when to use this feature and when it works best.  There is a different audience on 
Instagram and so officers want to ‘boost’ independently on that platform in addition.   
 
5.3 For comparison purposes, other posts on Facebook in the last 3 months have a 
range on engagement figures from approximately 150 to around 2,500, depending 
largely on the number of ‘shares’ they have achieved.  It is noted that posts in which 
businesses/people are tagged achieve higher reach as they benefit from the 
combined audience of the two parties.  More posts like this are being utilised. To 
grow the reach and following, officers need to increase the number of likes and 
shares per post, across all platforms as this will boost use in the algorithms.  
 
5.4 This communication tool has proven successful in not only promoting the market, 
and in gathering votes for The Great British Market Awards, but also the recruitment 
of traders with enquiries received via social media messaging. 
 
 
6 FUTURE DELIVERY OF THEMED, VISITING, SPECIALITY AND OTHER 
MARKETS for 2022/23 
 
6.1  The table below shows proposed and confirmed dates for delivery of Themed, 
Visiting, Speciality and Other Markets for 2022/23. Officers have secured 3 dates for 
the visiting Vegan Market to be held in Spring, through Summer. 
 
6.2 Street Food Heroes (a collection of different food vendors), have booked again 
this year from March through September, visiting on the last Sunday of each month. 
 

Date Themed Markets 2022/2023 Delivery Status 

16-Apr Easter Activity   

14 - 28 May Love Your Local Market Fortnight    

04-Jun Queens Jubilee Celebrations   

02-Jul Independents Day (In collaboration 
with LB First) 

  

09-Aug National Children’s Playday Tuesday   

  Halloween activity   

  Small Business Saturday   

Page 8



 
  

Date Visiting Markets 2022/2023 Delivery Status 

27 Mar, 24 April, 
29 May, 26 Jun, 
31 Jul, 28 Aug, 
25 Sept. 

Street Food Heroes - Sundays   

13-Mar Vegan Market - Sunday   

TBC Antiques & Vintage Market - Sunday   

22-Apr France at Home Market - Friday   

TBC Antiques & Vintage Market - Sunday   

12-Jun Vegan Market - Sunday   

TBC Antiques & Vintage Market - Sunday   

18-Sep Vegan Market - Sunday   

Date Speciality & Other 2022/2023 Delivery Status 

20-Nov Christmas Charity Market - Sunday   

26-Nov Christmas Festival Weekend   

03-Dec Small Business Saturday   

 
 
7 THE GREAT BRITISH MARKET AWARDS 
 
7.1 On 3 February 2022, NABMA (National Association of British Market Authorities), 
concluded their Great British Market Award scheme and Leighton Buzzard Market 
won the category of Best Local Council Market 2022.  
 
7.2 Given that the award scheme had been suspended due to the pandemic, it is an 
achievement for the Council that Leighton Buzzard Market has emerged from 18 
plus months of very difficult trading to secure the award.  
 
7.3 Publicity through social media and local newspaper has been secured and 
officers will continue to ensure the award is promoted to secure customers and 
traders.  
 
 
8. CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 With a month and a half of this current fiscal year yet to go, the finale of 2021/22 
is the achievement of Best Local Council Market 2022.  
 
 
END. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Market Sub Committee                                              24 February 2022                     Appendix A 
       

2021-22 - Market Annual Work Plan - remains ‘active’ and open to changes. 
 Task Target date Committee  Update Delivery 

status 

1. Covid recovery 
Dependent upon Government 
Guidelines & influence 
pedestrianisation of High Street. 

Ongoing Market Sub As per national circumstances and local 
principal authority activity in the High Street.  
Ref: 44/MK (a), 05/11/20 - Committee resolved 
to recommend to Council continue using the 
road space for the market and the permanent 
removal of buses on market days.  
Full Council will collate a single response to 
CBC. 
New temporary market layout in place since 
10/08/21. 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

2. Review market opening times. 
 

Spring / 
Summer 2021 

Market Sub Ref: 44/MK,(b), 05/11/20 - to consider 
undertaking a review of market opening hours. 
New opening times commenced 1st October : 
08:30 – 15:00 (Ref:61 M/K)  

 
G 

 CARRIED FORWARD      

3. Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers have 
remained constant for some time. 
Review guidance documents, 
name/branding - aiming to increase 
trader numbers. 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

70/MK (02/12/21)- resolved to change the name 
of the farmers market to ‘Farmers and Producers 
Market’ and recommend an amended policy to 
P&F Committee.  
P&F meeting to take place 24/01/22 
 

 
G 

4. Market Rules and Regulations, 
Trader Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as 
identified and to reflect the updating of 
Council policies and procedures. 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 
Collating information from across the industry. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  

 
 

A 

5. Engagement with traders / format for 
Committee trader representation 
Review the current activity giving 
structure to representation and in doing 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E,  
P&F 

Carried forward from 2020/21, 
Ref: 22/MK – 21/11/19 – resolved to endorse 
Leighton Buzzard market traders, have Liaison 
Officers formally recognised and affiliated to the 

 
 

G 

P
age 11



Market Sub Committee                                              24 February 2022                     Appendix A 
       

2021-22 - Market Annual Work Plan - remains ‘active’ and open to changes. 
so seek advice from the National 
Market Traders Federation (NMTF). 

National Market Trader Federation to facilitate 
trader representation at Committee meetings. 
Ref: 68/CE – 07/12/20 – NMTF representatives 
attended C&E Committee. 
13/04/21_NMTF Representative visited the 
market. 
NMTF confirmed Liaison Officer in place (Ref: 
62 M/K) 

 ANNUAL ACTIVITY     

6. Environmental Aims Ongoing Market Sub Autumn 2020 introduced (recycling) box for crisp 
packets. Council’s supplier withdrew recycling 
service in Summer 2021. 
Sept 2021, environmental questions were added 
to the annual review survey. Feedback relating 
to environmental activity has been shared via 
social media.  

 
Ongoing 

7. Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review, as necessary. 

Autumn 
2021 

Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Incorporated in Market 
12 Month Review  Autumn 2021 

 
G 

8. Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2021 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Market 12 Month 
Review. Autumn 2021 

 
G 

 

P
age 12



Market Sub Committee                                              24 February 2022                     Appendix B 
       

2022-23 - Market Annual Work Plan - remains ‘active’ and open to changes. 
 Task Target date Committee  Update Delivery 

status 

1. Covid recovery 
Dependent upon Government Guidelines 
& influence pedestrianisation of High 
Street. 

Ongoing Market Sub CBC decision on 2/02/22 to continue the 
pedestrianisation of the High St on market and 
event days.  

 

Ongoing 

2.  Ten-year anniversary of overseeing 
the market 

June 2022 Market sub Officers are considering how the anniversary may 
be celebrated.  

 

 CARRIED FORWARD      

3. Market Rules and Regulations, Trader 
Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as identified 
and to reflect the updating of Council 
policies and procedures. 

March 2023 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 
Collating information from across the industry. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if the 
need for alterations are identified.  

 
 

A 

 ANNUAL ACTIVITY     

4. Environmental Aims Carbon 
assessment 
2022 

G&E 
P&F 
Market Sub 

Environmental questions are now part of the  
annual review survey.  
Waste management figures annual shared on or 
near Earth Day, April 2022. 
A carbon assessment of Town Council operations 
is to be undertaken in 2022 inclusive of the market 
to provide baseline evidence on which to take 
forward the move towards being net carbon neutral 
by 2030 (Ref.156/GE) Council staff to undertake 
carbon literacy training.  

 
Ongoing 

5. Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2022 Market Sub, 
 

An annual survey to be undertaken of traders and 
customers 

Annually 
  

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



 
 
 
 
 

Market Sub Committee      
 

Date: 24 February 2022 

 
Title: Market Budget Report, Quarter 3,  2021/22 

 
Purpose of the Report: To provide end of year budget information for Quarter 3, 
2021/22 

 

Contact Officer:  Adrian Harrison, Market Manager  
 

Corporate Objective/s No 23. To continue to manage, promote and develop 
the street market. 

Implications:  

Financial Yes - Income and expenditure figures for Q3 2021/22 
 

Human Resources  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

 

Procedural/Legal  

Risk/Health and Safety  

Environmental Aims  

 

1 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded, the proposal is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The information provides an understanding of quarterly financial details. All 
figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and rounded up 
to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and expenditure 
received and paid during the months presented.  
 
2.2 The quarterly figures provided reflect a two-year financial period, not a calendar 
two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 12.   
 
2.3 Expenditure is defined as all running costs relating to the market, including 
staffing. It was noted by Committee that a more detailed expenditure report is 
produced as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports and presented 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
  
to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic Services.  
 
2.2 Committee will be aware that at the start of this financial year, 2021/2022, 
essential traders started paying rents from 12 April.  Non-essential traders started 
paying rents 12 weeks later as per Policy and Finance Committee decision, (Ref. 
197/PF). 
 
 

3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING QUARTER 3, OCTOBER TO 
DECEMBER 2021/22 
 
3.1 Income, expenditure, and net for October to December 2021/22. 
 

 
 

  
Income 

Summary 
Oct-20 Oct-21 Nov-20 Nov-21 Dec-20 Dec-21 

Total Income  £          
717.00  

 £      
7,464.00  

 £      
1,028.00  

 £      
7,599.00  

 £      
1,339.00  

 £        
6,371.00  

Total 
Expenditure 

-£      
9,000.00  

-£      
9,965.00  

-£   
11,382.00  

-£      
8,080.00  

-£      
9,473.00  

-£     
10,287.00  

Total -£      
8,283.00  

-£      
2,501.00  

-£   
10,354.00  

-£         
481.00  

-£      
8,134.00  

-£       
3,916.00  

      
Income: 

 

All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any further 
absence is charged and paid for. 
 
No expenditure has been incurred thus far for managing the road barrier during the 
temporary pedestrianisation of the High Street, yet a budget line remains in place. 

-£70,000.00

-£60,000.00

-£50,000.00

-£40,000.00

-£30,000.00

-£20,000.00

-£10,000.00

 £-

 £10,000.00

 £20,000.00

Oct-20 Oct-21 Nov-20 Nov-21 Dec-20 Dec-21 Total

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for Oct 
2021 - Dec 2021 vs. Oct 2020 - Dec 2020

Total Income Total Expenditure Total

Page 16



 
  
 
Note: 3 days trading were lost in December. On December 7 the adverse weather 
policy was invoked. The other 2 days lost were bank holidays due to Christmas 
holidays. An extra Christmas Eve market was added and as in previous years the 
number of traders attending is approximately 50% of normal trader attendance. 
 
 
3.2  Income comparison per market day/type October to December 2021/2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 £-

 £2,000.00

 £4,000.00

 £6,000.00

 £8,000.00

 £10,000.00

 £12,000.00

Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Total

Tuesday & Saturday Charter Market Income for
Oct - Dec 2021

Tuesday Saturday

 £-

 £100.00

 £200.00

 £300.00

 £400.00

 £500.00

 £600.00

 £700.00

 £800.00

Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Total

Other Market Income for Oct - Dec 2021

Farmers Speciality (Inc Start-Up) Handmade & Craft

Commercial Other

Page 17



 
  
The increase in speciality income reflects several events held in the last quarter. These 
include Small Business Saturday, Christmas Charity Market, and the re-arranged date 
for the visting Vegan Market. 
 
3.3 Total Market Income October to December 2021/2022 
 

Total Market 
Income 

Oct-20 Oct-21 Nov-20 Nov-21 Dec-20 Dec-21 

Tuesday  £          
375.00  

 £      
3,702.00  

 £          
460.00  

 £      
3,310.00  

 £          
788.00  

 £        
2,408.00  

Saturday  £          
234.00  

 £      
3,398.00  

 £          
463.00  

 £      
3,923.00  

 £          
432.00  

 £        
3,007.00  

Farmers  £            
18.00  

 £          
144.00  

 £            
90.00  

 £          
144.00  

 £            
36.00  

 £            
144.00  

Speciality (Inc 
Start-Up) 

 £            
75.00  

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £          
222.00  

 £            
83.00  

 £            
652.00  

Handmade & 
Craft 

 £                   -     £          
220.00  

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   -     £            
160.00  

Commercial  £            
15.00  

 £                   
-    

 £            
15.00  

 £                   
-    

 £                   -     £                     
-    

Other  £                   -     £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   -     £                     
-    

Total  £          
717.00  

 £      
7,464.00  

 £      
1,028.00  

 £      
7,599.00  

 £      
1,339.00  

 £        
6,371.00  

 
Note: there was no craft market held in November due to the adverse weather policy 
being invoked. December’s craft market was moved forward to 11 December as it 
fell on Christmas Day. Attendance for this day was 50% lower than usual. 
 
 
3.4 The table below shows the actual year to date figures against the predicted 
current annual budget for 2021/22 up to December 2021. 
 

                                                                                           Actual to Date         Target Budget                                                                                          

Annual Summary 2019/2020 20/2021 2021/2022 2021/2022 

Total Income  £    81,710.00   £      8,128.00  £    51,565.00  £    22,275.00  

Total Expenditure -£ 115,262.00  -£ 118,046.00  -£   96,805.00 -£ 133,842.00  

Total -£   33,552.00  -£ 109,918.00  -£   45,240.00 -£ 111,567.00  

 

 
3.5 At this point in the financial year, the market income for the 1st, 2nd  and 3rd quarters 
combined has confidently exceeded the annual income target for 2021/22. This is in 
part due to modest budgetary forecasting as the market emerges out of the pandemic 
and ongoing success with recruiting traders.  
 

4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 As the country continues to recover from the pandemic, the market continues to 
improve its performance.  

Page 18


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 MARKET GENERAL  UPDATE
	5. Appendix A_Market Annual Work Plan 2021-22
	5. Appendix B_Market Annual Work Plan 2022-23

	6 BUDGET REPORT

